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From: Gabriel Martinez

Sent: Thursday, July 1, 2021 11:46 AM
To:
Subject: Recommendation 27.2

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Acting Captain Altorfer,

Our office has completed its review of the materials related to Recommendation 27.2 that were submitted to us
as part of the collaborative reform process. This package focused on SFPD providing trainings covering
various bias-related and cultural competency concepts to better address issues of bias. After reviewing the
package and information provided by the Department, the California Department of Justice finds as follows:

Recommendation 27.2: The SFPD should begin anti-bias and cultural competency training of department
members immediately and should not await the outcome of the training needs assessment. All officers should
complete implicit bias training and cultural competency on the following topics:

Implicit bias awareness and skills for promoting bias-free policing

The definition of cultural competence

Disparate treatment, prejudice, and related terms and their application in law enforcement
The history of various cultures and underrepresented groups in society

Self-assessment of cultural competency and strategies for enhancing ones proficiency in
this area

Culturally proficient leadership and law enforcement in communities.

Response to 27.2: Since 2016 San Francisco’s Department of Human Resources has been teaching implicit bias
courses to SFPD officers. Lieutenants, captains, and commanders were trained in 2016 in a sixteen-hour
course, sergeants were trained in 2017 and 2018 in an eight-hour course, and recruits and police service aides
(including new hires) began receiving the eight-hour training in 2017. The training continues presently with all
new hires being trained.




While the DHR program is a one-time class, SFPD has instituted additional internal trainings covering

bias. These additional trainings include the Principled Policing training that began in 2017 as part of Advanced
Officer training. Now all existing officers are required to have attended the Principled Policing training (or
refresher course every two years if completed), as well as new officers in Basic Academy and new police
service aides. The two-year refresher course surpasses the requirement set by the Racial and Identity Profiling
Act of a refresher course at least every five years (California Penal Code Section 13519.4 (i)). The eight-hour
class covers procedural justice and implicit bias through five modules: (1) The Interactive Nature Between
Procedural Justice, Legitimacy, and Goals in Policing; (2) Expectations and Legitimacy; (3) Education and
Training; (4) Historical and Generational Effects of Policing; and (5) Implicit Bias and Stereotypes. The Police
Academy is currently creating the two-hour Principled Policing refresher course and the four-hour Bias and
Racial Profiling course for the next Advanced Officer training scheduled in 2021/2022.

Additionally, SFPD has incorporated elements of bias training within regular occurring roll-call training and in
recruit training. Some of the roll-call trainings that have been presented are Procedural Justice — Neutrality;
Interacting with Transgender, Gender Variant, and Nonbinary Individuals; and Procedural Justice —

Respect. Some of these recruit trainings are Racial Profiling, Cultural Competency, and Transgender
Awareness.

On August 12, 2020, SFPD issued revised Department General Order 5.17, “Bias-Free Policing Policy.” The
Order mandates officer training consistent with POST on principled policing, racial and cultural diversity, and
managing implicit bias. The Order mandates that SFPD’s bias training covers racial identity and cultural
differences and community relations, historical discrimination, and impacts of law-enforcement biases.

As of September 2020, ninety-eight percent of officers have completed their required bias training. The
remaining two percent comprise recruits yet to receive training and individuals on various forms of leave or
separation from SFPD.

SFPD has researched and reviewed its cultural competency training with an eye toward improving on the idea
of cultural competency with the concept of cultural humility after consultation with Stanford researchers. That
concept is now a part of SFPD’s Blue Courage three-day training.

SFPD and DHR have worked with academic institutions and researchers as part of their plan to improve
SFPD’s bias training. They include Dr. Jennifer Eberhardt (Stanford University), Dr. Rebecca Hetey (Stanford
University), Dr. Laura Fridell (University of South Florida), Dr. Josh Correll (University of Colorado, Boulder),
Dr. Jack Glaser (UC Berkeley). These academics have weighed in on concepts to inform SFPD training
including implicit and explicit biases, bias by proxy, bias confirmation, blink responses, and black crime
association bias. In 2017, Dr. Rebecca Hetey reviewed SFPD’s training process and provided a written
evaluation lauding SFPD’s expansion of the Principled Policing training for incorporating gender and sexual
orientation, and also finding that SFPD went beyond a “check the box™ approach to engage on issues of bias in
criminal justice in training materials: “[A]t SFPD I observed a genuine embrace of the material and saw
evidence of the core team's work to tailor the material to the agency in order to demonstrate why it matters for
all members of the SFPD. Of any agency | have observed, SFPD put the most thought and effort into making
the material its own.” SFPD continues to work with Dr. Hetey on investigating SFPD internal culture for
improved training.



In 2021, SFPD is planning to improve on its bias training by implementing BiasSync, a program that includes
an implicit association test, training for bias mitigation, and dashboards. BiasSync provides a two-hour training
session for each officer after their implicit association test as well as monthly micro-learning sessions. After
two years, BiasSync will measure and report to SFPD any changes in officer attitudes. This information will
help SFPD create a needs assessment on an organizational level going forward. Additionally, in 2020 SFPD
assigned a Professional Development Unit officer to revie and audit all bias trainings, including periodically
attending classes to ensure SFPD is teaching course materials effectively. On January 5, 2021, SFPD issued
Unit Order 21-02, “Audit and Review of Bias Training Programs,” that codified SFPD’s practice of having
officers complete course evaluation forms and having the Training Division review the evaluations for
improvements. Additionally, the Training Division now collects second evaluations on bias trainings four
months after the trainings to determine which material had a lasting effect (Unit Order 21-01). These audits are
compiled in quarterly reports that are sent to the Commanding Officer of the Training Division for review.

Based upon all of the above, the Department of Justice finds that SFPD is in substantial compliance with this
recommendation. Please let us know if you have any questions or would like to discuss further. Thank you.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.



Hillard Heintze File Review Recommendation # 27.2

Finding # 27 The SFPD is not addressing the anti-bias goals set forth through the Fair and Impartial

Policing training-the-trainers session.

Recommendation # 27.2 The SFPD should begin anti-bias and cultural competency training of department members
immediately and should not await the outcome of the training needs assessment. All officers should
complete implicit bias training and cultural competency training, which should include the following
topics:

o Implicit bias awareness and skills for promoting bias-free policing

o The definition of cultural competence

o Disparate treatment, prejudice, and related terms and their application in law enforcement

® The history of various cultures and underrepresented groups in society

o Self-assessment of cultural competency and strategies for enhancing one’s proficiency in this area
o Culturally proficient leadership and law enforcement in communities.

Recommendation Status Complete Partially Complete In Progress
Not Started No Assessment

Summary

The San Francisco Police Department has instituted anti-bias education and cultural competency training, which are
supported by department policy and California POST mandates and delivered across multiple platforms, including roll
call, traditional lecture, and scenario based training.

The department’s decision regarding the automatic release of book photos is an example of culturally proficient
leadership. Training is reviewed and audited for effectiveness by an evaluations officer assigned to the training division
who also acts as a liaison to DHR. Remedial action for failure to attend training is shown through officers subject to
discipline under General Order 2.01.

Compliance Measures Status/Measure Met

1 Immediately began anti-bias and cultural competency training that includes implicit
bias awareness and skills for promoting bias-free policing including the following
topics:

e The definition of cultural competence -

e Disparate treatment, prejudice, and related terms and their application in law
enforcement

o The history of various cultures and underrepresented groups in society

o Self-assessment of cultural competency and strategies for enhancing one's
proficiency in this area

e Culturally proficient leadership and law enforcement in communities.

vYes [0 No [ N/A

2 PO!IC'Y that requires all officers to complete implicit bias and cultural competency VYes CINo O N/A
training.

3 Evidence of training review and effectiveness. vYes [ No [ON/A

4 Evidence of supportive and remedial action if deficiencies are found - including failure

to attend training. vYes [ONo [ON/A
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